
 
Page 1 of 3 
 

Open Space Committee 
Andover Township 

 
February 24, 2009 

 
 
The Chairman, Dan Freed, opened the meeting at 7:40 p.m. Present were members Dan 
Freed, Diane Gillespie, Carla Kostelnik, and Lois deVries, and alternate Laura Gilsenan 
who arrived after roll call at 7:46. Absent were Alex Gilsenan, Mike Morel, and Mary 
Grace Rudolph. Also present was Angela Thies, Secretary. 
 
The Chairman called for the flag salute, roll call, and OPMA statement.  
 
Adoption of Minutes from January 27, 2009:  Two amendments to the minutes of Jan. 27 
were requested:  (1) Carla asked that the minutes be amended to reflect that she (not Lois 
as stated) suggested that Sandy present her business first (ref. para. six); (2) Diane 
suggested that the minutes reflect the secretary’s name be added as submitter. All agreed. 
A motion was made by Diane, seconded by Lois, to accept the minutes as amended. All 
in favor. Motion carried. A further motion was made by Carla and seconded by Lois to 
accept the executive minutes of Jan. 27. All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
Adoption of Agenda:  A motion was made by Lois deVires, seconded by Diane Gillespie, 
to adopt the agenda; all in favor, motion carried. 
 
Open Meeting:  The Chairman opened the meeting to the public at 7:46 p.m. There were 
no members of the public in attendance. 
 
Executive Session: The chairman declared that the committee would not be entering into 
executive session during the course of this evening’s meeting. 
 
Sussex County GIS:  Chairman Dan Freed provided a brief explanation of Sussex 
County’s updated GIS service called “Parcelink,” including an overview of the site’s 
navigation properties and overall features. Dan noted that the parcel data available at this 
site would be of particular interest to Open Space Committee members. Lois added that, 
in her experience at the site, she thought it provided more recent aerial photo imaging 
than did the DEP site. Dan added that Parcelink offered historical data as well, allowing 
for the tracking of a given parcel over an extended period of time. Dan distributed copies 
of the county’s Parcelink brochure to committee members. Dan also told the Committee 
that there will be a link button on the County’s web page and that this is something that 
should be considered for the Township’s website as well.  
 
Lake Iliff property purchase:  Dan said the township approved for additional survey work 
to be done on the driveway, noting that purchase of the land would move forward. Dan 
added that Sandy Urgo didn’t have any new information to present, but that she presently 
was working toward getting land owners to think more realistically about the true market 



 
Page 2 of 3 
 

value of their property. Dan said that Sandy would likely be in attendance at the 
committee’s March meeting. 
 
Lois mentioned the sale of a sewer plant/building shell, available for an approximate $5 
million.  
 
Laura mentioned that Alex Gilsenan was meeting with Richard Jump to further discuss 
the parcel under consideration for its potential recreational use. Dan commented on the 
discord/lawsuit between Life Care Mews and Gerry Turco’s heirs. Lois added that the 
township could potentially benefit from a future acquisition from Life Care Mews, 
depending on the outcome.  
 
Conversation ensued about the power line situation in the township. Laura expressed 
concerned over the power lines going through Andover Township as opposed to being 
routed through the Highlands. Carla questioned why Sparta Township was contracting 
with a Canadian company.  
 
Laura questioned the status of the OSC Green Acres application with the state. Lois said 
the grant process had not yet been completed. Dan indicated that the State did have 
money available for this round of Grant applications and that the Township should still be 
expecting to receive approximately $200,000 in a Planning Incentive Grant.  
 
Carla brought up the matter of a state-initiated poll to determine if a revival of the Garden 
State Preservation Trust Fund (GSPT) was in order. Lois explained that the GSPT is a 
trust fund set up for the state’s open space tax money – used for Green Acres programs. 
The farm bureau lobby is trying to convince the Sec. of Agriculture to approve a fair tax, 
which would help reimburse people for land appropriated as a result of the Highlands 
Act. The opinion of those polled showed that one year was too short a time, with five 
years the preferred timeframe.  
 
Subcommittee on Recreation Needs:  Dan said that he and Mike Morel had not yet had an 
opportunity to convene a subcommittee dedicated to the discussion of recreation fields, 
but that they would have something to report next month. Dan added that the letter from 
the Recreation Dept. was broad in scope, and more information would be needed to plan 
effectively for credible recreation opportunities. Lois added that planning and preparation 
were required to consider adequate recreation opportunities, and, given the economic 
downturn, she questioned the timeliness of pushing recreational plans. Dan contended 
that, despite the current downturn, it still was necessary to attain a vision and put a plan 
in place.  
 
Carla agreed that focusing on recreation opportunities was not a bad idea. Laura 
reminded members that when the vote for open space was brought to the electorate, there 
was a focus on both protecting water and acquiring ball fields, adding that Andover’s 
opportunities to protect water sources might pale in comparison to its neighbor’s, but 
opportunities – preservation and recreation – should be ranked in how the township’s 
residents can benefit from them.  



 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 
Lois pointed out that a very important element of stewardship includes taking care of land 
that people will not use, noting that a balance needs to be struck with the town’s need for 
recreation use and the preservation of Andover’s habitat. Carla and Laura held that the 
committee’s charge was to preserve water and obtain more recreation space.  
 
Community Outreach:  Looking back on the committee’s work to date, Dan felt that the 
group should feel good about its accomplishments, noting however that the group could 
do more in the way of community outreach. Lois noted the importance of preserving 
historical sites, such as the German cemetery owned by Sussex Warren Holding, which is 
home to headstones dating back to 1710, and preservation of Andover’s iron mines. Carla 
suggested that the committee ask Sandy Urgo about her knowledge on the subject of 
historical preservation. Dan said he also would look into learning more about the state 
historical preservation registry and its requirements. Lois agreed to communicate with the 
state to obtain literature on historical registry procedure. Diane suggested the committee 
use the township newsletter as a means of outreach, and highlight its activities and 
achievements. Dan agreed to provide Laura with some bullet points from which she could 
put together a story for the newsletter. She added that the committee should educate local 
residents about the benefits of placing their land on a preservation list. Lois suggested the 
committee reach out to Jennifer Miller of the Township Journal to publicize the Lake Iliff 
acquisition with a ribbon-cutting ceremony/release.  
 
On a separate matter, discussion ensued as to whether or not the township would host an 
Andover Day in 2009.  
 
Lois initiated a discussion over easements, suggesting that the committee consider 
educating landowners via a public seminar as to the benefits of donating easements to a 
conservancy, if not an entire parcel, noting that different types of agreements could be 
struck between owners and land conservancies for different types of easements. Carla and 
Laura expressed concern that there might be limited interest on the subject and 
questioned its need/success.  
 
A motion was made by Laura, seconded by Diane, to adjourn the meeting at 8:49 pm. All 
in favor; motion carried. 
 
Respectfully submitted by 
Angela Thies, Secretary 


